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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Commenced in 1890 (finished 1892) the first building of the University of New Mexico
was a stiff, rather awkward Richardson Romanesque design constructed of dark red
brick with rough stone trim. Two stories tall on a high stone basement, it had
identical pavilions on both main facades. These pavilions of three stories were -
capped by steep gables which rose as high as the ridge of the hip roof that covered
the rectangular structure. The lateral facades also had gables, each surmounted by
a large chimney. The proportions of the structure were pinched and vertical, an ef-
fect that was exacerbated by the off-center, split-level entrance covered by a broad
arch. Fenestration was graded: small square sash in the basement, rectangular
openings on the first floor, rounded windows with heavy archivolts on the second, a
bank of smaller windows with arched transoms in the pavilion at the third level.
Three more openings crowded the gables and eyebrow dormers lighted the attic.

After serving less than two decades a drastic remodeling in 1908 transformed this
run of the mill composition into a Spanish-Pueblo design. A flat roof was substi-
tuted for the hip. (There appear to have been structural reasons for this change.)
A1l four gables were removed, and the arches over doors and windows were disguised
by the simple expedient of dropping a veneer of stucco over the upper portions of
the opening. For the sake of economy, however, the roundheaded sashes were not re-

placed and still show plainly from the interior. The proportions of other windows in the

north wing were similarly changed by partial blocking; and the off-center entry of
the east facade, which now became the main entrance, was minimized by the addition
of a projecting vestibule covered by a low loggia (the latter since removed). Also
to relieve the cramped symmetry of the mass, which would be inappropriate in a
Spanish-Pueblo type building, an elaborate stair pavilion with masonry parapets was
added at the southeast corner. This ascends in broken runs to a covered terrace at
the second level treated as a traditional portal. This last feature was achieved
by demolishing one corner of the masonry building. The original brick and stone
masonry was covered with earth colored stucco, imitation buttresses with wavey con-
tours were added at all corners, and equally unfunctional viga ends were attached
to the north and south facades.

The setting for the remodeled Administration Building - "Hodgin Hall" - was enhanced
by the planting of Rio Grande Valley cottonwoods and mountain ponderosa by President
Tight and the student body of the University in 1908. The grove was later named

in his honor "Tight Grove'.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

In educational terms Hodgin Hall is important to New Mexico as the first public prepara-
tory school building in the Territory as well as the first structure erected for the
University of New Mexico. It symbolizes the dreams for the future of New Mexico citizens
when the University was established in 1889, even before the Territory had a system of
public high schools.

The architectural importance of the Hodgin remodeling in 1908 is unmistakable, for it
inaugurated the Spanish-Pueblo Revival in New Mexico. Also known as the Santa Fe style,
this movement represents the first awareness of and pride in the unique architectural
heritage of this region. In a sense it parallels the development of the Taos and

Santa Fe schools of painting and comparable literary movements. It is important to.
emphasize that this pioneer monument on the UNM campus precedes comparable landmarks

in Santa Fe (the remodeled Palace of the Governors, 1909-11, and the Museum of New
Mexico and the School for the Deaf, both 1915) by a substantial term.

In the forefront of this pioneer movement was William George Tight, third President of
the University. Even before the remodeling of Hodgin Hall, he had built four modest
campus buildings of puebloid design: the original Heating Plant (1905), the Estufa
(1906), and two dormitories (1906). Further, he had stimulated student interest in
regional architecture, and with their assistance he had erected a temporary, movie set
type building in the Pueblo manner on the grounds of the Territorial Fair in 1908. In-
deed, this structure seems to have been a mock-up of the remodeled Hodgin Hall. Presi-
dent Tight deserves recognition as the first New Mexican to envision the Spanish-Pueblo
tradition as a fitting architectural expression for this region.

The documentation for Hodgin Hall is unusually complete for a New Mexican building.

The original architect was Jesse Wheelock, who designed numerous buildings in Albuquerque
and Las Vegas, few of which remain. The general contract for $26,196 was let to

G. Palladino and Carlo Digneo, but Charles E. Lembke was also connected with the

masonry work. Architect for the remodeling was Edward Buxton Christy, who might be
called Albuquerque's first architect. Few of Christy's buildings remain, but the
discovery that he collaborated with Tight, visiting and photographing pueblos with him,
making the working drawings, and supervising the remodeling of Hodgin Hall, constitutes
an important milestone in the early history of New Mexican architecture. A.W. Hayden
was the contractor for the remodeling.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

Southwest corner of the Central Campus of the University of New Mexico at
Albuquerque, New Mexico, bounded on the south by Central Avenue, on the west
by University Boulevard, on the north by Redondo Drive, south on the east
by a line midway between Hodgin Hall and Art Annex.

See attached location map.
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NAME / TITLE

Bainbridge Bunting and Joe McKinney

ORGANIZATION DATE

Qffice of the University Architect, University of New Mexico
STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE

P, 0. Box 18, University Station 505-277-2236

CITY OR TOWN STATE

Albuguerque, New Mexico 87131

STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER CERTIFICATION

THE EVALUATED SIGNIFICANCE OF THIS PROPERTY WITHIN THE STATE IS:
NATIONAL ___ sTATE X LOCAL _____

As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89-665). |
hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register and certify that it has been evaluated according to the
criteria and procedures set forth by the National Park Service.

STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER SIGNATURE

GPO 888-445
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